Yaron,
Generally, the proposal below moves toward me while fully maintaining Guy’s power to control the company – appointment of directors, chairperson, vice-CEOs, salary for life, etc.

												

The following is the part that Guy sent. My reactions are in red – he hasn’t seen the red yet.

Dear Yoni

Firstly – I hope things are keeping on getting better with your daughter. I’m sure it isn’t easy – I hope she gets better soon.

We are asking for some changes to the articles on issues concerning the control of the company and safeguarding the future. We want to work on it this week so that it can be ready for the upcoming round of recruiting in Meimad.

The basic idea behind the changes is to create partnership and fairness for Doron just like my own rights, and to share everything – safeguarding of the position, protection against dismissal, appointment and dismissal of members of the board of directors and managers, signatory rights, etc.

In some cases existing clauses can be amended, in others we may need to add clauses – I’m leaving such technical aspects to you.

1. Right to appoint/dismiss 4 members of the board of directors:

We want to amend this and change it to enable the following:

I can appoint/dismiss 2 directors (I and someone else, or two others)
Doron can appoint/dismiss 2 directors (Doron and someone else, or two others)

Acceptable. I would appoint the chairperson by a decision of the majority of the directors, but the candidates are determined by agreement by the entrepreneurs.

2. Signatory rights:

To safeguard the signatory rights in the articles – both Doron and mine, so that both of us can sign anything up to 50,000 dollars with the additional signature of the Vice-CEO – Finance. 
Above that sum and up to infinity – both our signatures will be required (separately, over 400,000 dollars (not for payment of salaries) – another director).

The subject of signatory rights is connected with Guy’s status in the company. If he’s a “president” rather than a CEO, then he shouldn’t even appear in the list of signatories. As a generalization, signatory rights should always include the signature of the CFO, and only then – above a certain figure, one additional signature (of the CEO or COO), and above that – two additional signatures (CEO and COO) up to a sum that also requires the signature of another external director.
In any case, signatory rights shouldn’t appear in the articles – it isn’t the appropriate place. This is a simply decision by the board, which can always be changed by another board decision. It’s also a paper that is forwarded to the banks and sometimes to other third parties.

3. Right to appoint a chairperson
We will both enjoy this right equally. The chairperson will be appointed/dismissed according to the opinion of both of us and by agreement of both of us.

4. We need to create an exclusion clause regarding clause 3 in a separate clause. I imagine the shareholders will find it difficult to agree to this, but we must find a creative solution.

As long as Benny Gantz is chairperson, he is asking that his status be safeguarded so that he alone will decide on the termination of his employment. This is a problematic issue, since if massive investors come along and want a different chairperson, or if the shareholders decided a year from now that he isn’t suitable, then how can we terminate his employment despite the condition (he isn’t an entrepreneur and I have never heard of such a request in all my business career). But we need to find a formula that will preserve his dignity and he matters to us.

In my opinion, the appointment and replacement of a chairperson should be by the majority decision of all the other directors. Despite this, and since the chairperson sits on the entrepreneurs’ chair, I would go for a mechanism whereby the directors choose from among candidates proposed by the entrepreneurs (see above).

5. C level appointments

C level appointments/dismissals will require the approval and agreement of both of us.

This isn’t in the company’s interests and won’t be accepted by the investors. In my opinion, there shouldn’t be any veto regarding the appointment of vice-CEOs. I can’t see any possibility of imposing vice-CEOs on the serving CEO, unless he is overtly mistrusted. We also need to think about a certain where neither Gur nor I are CEO – would it make sense for us to have a veto over the appointment of vice-CEOs? In general this is an extremely unusual clause that you wouldn’t find in any investment agreement or in the articles of any other properly-run company.
In any case, we should recall that the appointment of vice-CEOs comes before the board, so the decision should be made there.

6. Safeguarding the employment of the founders
We need to create a new and clear clause safeguarding our employment in Meimad, as long as the company exists, under the following conditions:

1.	Minimum salary of 17,500 dollars a month.
2.	C-level position or director, as chosen by each of us.
3.	Both of us will receive this salary as long as the company exists, even if we decide to discontinue our activity for any reason.

This isn’t rational, won’t be accepted by the investors, and I wouldn’t suggest it under any circumstances. I’ve never heard of such a suggestion.

Thanks and Shabbat Shalom.
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